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8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

9 FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10
11 | ROGER GIFFORD, No. 2:16-cv-0955 KIM GGH
12 Plaintiff,
13 V. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
14 | ROBERT PUCKETT SR., et al.,
15 Defendants.
16
17 This matter is @econd case filed by plaintiff Rogesifford alleging various claims
18 | against several defendants, some commdaotio actions, principal among which is the
19 || Hornbrook Community Services District (District). See 2:15t2v4 MCE AC PS. The
20 | additional defendants are various members obibk#&ict's Board, lawyers who have represented
21 | the District and its board members in this casevell as a relatezhse -- Harrell v. Hornbrook
22 | Community Services District, et al., 2:14-cv-1595 KIM GGH.
23 This Order will address the history of thelbtite present and the earlier case and for the
24 | reasons stated herein will recommend thamhéer be dismissed with prejudice pursuameto
25 | judicata, in part, Federal Rules of Civil Proced@&e41(b) and 12(b)(6) because, of its interna
26 | deficiencies, and because it fails to address ttiersrand warnings given in connection with the
27 | earlier case that led to itssthissal on those grounds.
28 | 1
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PROCEDURAL HISTORY*
6/15/15 A verified complaint is filedin Gifford v. Hornbrook, etc., Civ. 2:15-

1274 is filed and alleges several Claims as follows:

First Claim, Count 1, for violations of plaintiff's federal constitutional rights to
freedom and speech and petition; Count Il, fordeprivation of rights to free speech and
petition due process and equal protection of #laws’ Count Ill, for rights to due process
and equal protection; Count IV, for deprivation of rights to equal protection, due process
and liberty; Count V, for deprivation of rights to equal protection due process of law, and
first amended right of petition; Count VI, for deprivation of rights to due process and equal
protection related to Gifts of District public funds; Count VII, for violation of rights to due
process, equal protection, free speech and p&in, and liberty interests; and, Count VIII,
for deprivations of right to due process and gual protection — gifts of public funds to Clint
Dingman.

Second Claim: Pendent State Claims: Court, for violations of District by-laws;
Count Il, for willful negligence, negligence; Count lll, Violations of Government Code
sections 1090 and 87100 — Self Dealing; CouM, Retaliation in Employment; Count V,
Failure to Indemnify Public Employee; CountVI, violation of the Public Records Act;
Count VI, gifts of public funds false claims and fraud as to Clint Dingman; Count IX, for
violation of Article I, section 2, of the California Constitution; Count X — Unfair Business
Practices as to Robert Winston, CaliforniaBusiness and Professions Code section 17200 ¢
seq; Count Xl, Unfair Business Practices akb HCBC [defendant Hornbrook Community
Bible Church] (alleged to have resulted in wlations of the California Water Code and the
federal Safe Drinking Water Act); Count Xll, Unfair Business Practices as to Murphy,

Pearson, Bradley & Feeney, Inc. and Attorney Robert Lucas; Count XIlll, for civil

! The chronological procedural histories oftbtite instant matter angipredecessor, Gifford .

Hornbrook Community Services District,at, Civ. 2:15-cv- 1274 MCE-AC will be included
here. This exercise is necagsto demonstrate the burden tese has wrought on both the co
and the defendants’ pocketbooks and theesbh@comes necessary as context for the
recommendation this court will make to dismiss ttase. To distinguish between the two cas
the referenced pleadings in the eartiase appear in bfaced type.
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conspiracy by defendants to wlate plaintiff's constitutional and statutory rights and in
retaliation; Count XIV, for Willf ul and/or Negligent Infliction of Emotional Distress; Count
XV, for California Labor Law Violations; Count XVI for nuisance; Count XVII, for
violations of the contractual covenant ofjood faith and fair dealing; Count XVIII, for
Punitive Damages.

Each of the foregoing incorporates “facts® stated in paragraphs 1 through 189 and
191.

Plaintiff prays for damages, both comensatory and punitive, declaratory relief,
disgorgement of attorney fees paid to dendant attorneys and gifts of public funds,
attorneys’ fees, mandates to disclose recipientd$ gifts of public funds, to require Board
members to engage an engineering firm to dermine proper water delivery fees, to employ
certified operators of all district facilities, to provide plaintiff with unrestricted access to all
District equipment, property, facilities and all books and records it mantains; a declaration
that defendant Dingman is an uncertified operator and thus a nuisance per se and as sucH
he must cease any operational activities anehforcement of that cessation by injunction,
and injunctions prohibiting refusing to provide keys to all District locks to plaintiff and all
other directors, preventing defendants andhose acting in concert with them from
operating the District facilities until they acquire licenses and from ating outside federal
state or local law, disallowing Board Defendars from undertaking administrative duties of
officers and employees, mandatig Board Defendants to abide by District by-laws, and
declarations of each act previously taken bthe Board defendants in violation of the Broad
Act, the District Bylaws and any other law icentified in the Complaint and identifying all
such actions to beultra vires and void.

Altogether this Complaint ran to 114 mges and was accompanied by 219 pages of
attachment exhibits. ECF No. 1.

1

2 The “facts” purportedly stated are aftbetter described dsgal conclusions.
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9/22/15 Magistrate Judge Clair grantglaintiff IFP status and dismisses the
complaint pursuant to Federal Rule of Civl Procedure 8 and based upon its “shotgun
pleading” nature, explaining actions must beéaken to bring the complaint within the scope
of the dictates of Rule 8 and the Local Rules dhe District. Plaintiff is given 30 days to
amend if he chooses to do so. ECF No. 3.

1/21/16 After being given two 90 day extesions of time to replead, ECF Nos. 5
7, plaintiff files his First Amended Complaint. This amendment runs to 143 pages plus a 3
page Table of Contents, but has no accompgimg Attachments or Exhibits. ECF No 8.

1/26/16 Magistrate Judge Clairesgsues Findings and Recommendations
recommending the Amended Complaint be dismissed without leave to amend for a
continuing violation of Rule 8 and replication of the first“shotgun pleading.” The Order
finds that plaintiff has acted in bad faith, has repeated to fail to cure deficiencies by the
amendment allowed, has prejudiced the deferahts by his actions, and concludes that
further amendment would be futile. ECF No. 9.

2/12/16 Plaintifffiles objections to the Magistrate Judge’s Findings and
Recommendations on the groundsnter alia, that the court has misread the requirements of

Rule 8, violated the holdings of Twombly anddbal, overlooked the complexity of the issueg

he has raised which prevents a “short and pin” presentation, andfailed to meaningfully
assess the complaint as a whole. ECF No. 10.

3/30/16 District Judge adopts Findigs and Recommendations, ECF No. 9,
dismisses Amended Complaint without leave to aemd, and orders the file closed. ECF No
11.

4/21/16 Plaintiff files a Notice of Apeal. ECF No. 13, and seeks in forma
pauperis status in appellatecourt. ECF Nos. 13, 15.

5/5/16 Plaintiff files the Complaimh the instant matter, Civ. 2:16-cv-955,
containing 85 pages of allegations and 40 padexhibits, ECF No. 1, and seeks in forma
pauperis status. ECF Nos. 2. The Complaintirgdtimg to state claims that have been dismis

against the District, et..aland otherwise, sets farthe following claims:
4
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First Claim, Count | — Violations of righte freedom of assembly, speech and petition

Count Il — Deprivations of right® equal protection and due prose€ount Il — Deprivations of
rights to equal protection due process and Anseéndment rights; CounV — Deprivations of
due process and equal protection for giftpuaiblic funds to named parties; Count V —
Deprivations of rights to due process and eguatection for gifts of pulc funds to defendant
Clint Dingman; Count VI — Deprivations diue process and equal protection for illegal
modification to and ignoring of Btrict by-laws by ; Count VII ¥iolation of 42 U.S.C. section
1985; Count VIII — Violation of rights to due guess, equal protectidny defendants District,
Bowles, Winston, Dingmaand Goff; Count IX — Mlation of due proces and equal protection
by defendants Board, Dingman and Goff.

Second Claim, Count 1 — Violation of Stdtaw for failing to follow by-laws; Count Il —
Willful Negligence and Negligenc€ount Ill — Gifts of Public Fund<ount IV — Gifts of Publig
Funds, False Claims and Fraud against deferidiagiman; Count V — Gift of Public Funds to
defendants Ernest Goff and Julievides through false claims; Couwit — Gifts of Public Funds
to John Does; Count VIl — Violation of Article 4ection 3, of the California Constitution; Cou
VIII — Violation of Article 1 section 2 of the Cédirnia Constitution; Count I1X — Unfair Busineg

Practices by Julie Bowles aBward defendants; Count X — Iidance and Nuisance Per se by

S

Dingman and Goff; Count Xl — Failure to ImgoStandby Fee and Collect Due Fees and Taxes;

Count Xl — Unfair Business Practices by Robafinston and Board defendants; Count XIV +

Unfair Business Practices and$&aClaims by Robert Winsto@ount XV — Neligence by Robe
Winston and Board defendants; Count XVI — Unfirsiness Practices by the District; Count
XVII — Willful and/or Negligent Infliction ofEmotional DistressCount XVIII — Nuisance by
Board Defendants, Dingman andfG&@ount XIX — Official Acts of Board Defendants are Voi
Count XX — Improperly Unbilled Fees and Charges (gifts of public funds); Count XXI — W
of Public Funds; Count XII Violatioof the California Public Records Act.

The prayer seeks declats of rights, general, special, economic and exemplary
damages, disgorgement of wrongfully attainegnpants; disgorgement gifts of public funds;

attorney fees and costs of suit; mandate disclagurecipients of public funds; restitution of
5
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losses incurred by the District; mandate a studg pwublic engineering firm re reasonable,
compliance with Water Code provisions, fundingietessary maintenance and repairs, hiring

properly qualified and certified employees and méadd directors be given unrestricted acce

to District equipment, facilities, documents and rdspdeclaration re effect of failure to comply

with the California Public Records Act and maate future compliancend expunge prior void
policies, customs and practices of the Distsetyeral preliminary injurtions to restrict the
actions of defendants including prevention of lawyer defendants from representing District
employees and agents without a specific reéswiiadopted at a publimeeting that, taken
together, would have the impact of a gran@ngceivership over the District. ECF No. 1.

5/26/16 Magistrate Judgeddle grants informa paupesgatus in Civ. 2:16-cv-955
and dismisses the Complaint with thirty days &etvamend again citing to the requirements ¢
Rule 8, the Local Rules of the $diict, and the “shotgun pleadingpproach used by plaintiff,
ECF No. 3.

6/15/16 Plaintiff files olgctions to ECF No. 3, citg Swierkiewicz v. Sorema,

N.A., 534 U.S. 506, 514 (2002)ECF No. 7.
Plaintiff files First Amended Complaint.

6/20/16 Magistrate Judge dismissestFAimended Complaint ith 30 days leave
to amend with Rule 8 instructions repsdtand limits any amendment to 25 pages

8/24/16 Magistrate Judgeters an Order granting plaintiff 30 days from date of
issuance to file an amended cdaapt not to exceed 25 pagestatits it be in the proper form
under Local Rule 130, and cannotanporate attachments or et as a means to expanding
beyond the page limit. ECF No. 8.

9/12/16 Plaintifffiles objections to Order, ECF No. 8, arguing the page limit

imposed is arbitrary and the Order did assess the sufficiency of the claipes se, failed to

® Plaintiff interprets Swierkiewicto stand for the propositichat length, complexity,
repetitiveness, and the like canibeta basis for dismissal. Actually, the case overrul8% a 2
Circuit requirement that a plaiff must plead in accordance withe evidentiary structure founc
in the Court’s holding in MBonnell Douglas Corp. v. Gree#]1 U.S. 792 (1973), instead
iterating the standard to be ugedudge a complaint is found Rule 8’s call for a “short and
plain” pleading.

6
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identify what could be stricken as “unnecegsaand cites to Davis v. Ruby Foods, Inc., 269

F.3d 818 (¥ Cir. 2001} which held that the mere inclusion of some extraneous material in 4
complaint is not sufficient to merit dismissal. ECF No. 9.

9/20/16 Plaintiff requests withdrawal 6P status and pays filing fee. ECF No.
10.

10/3/16 Ninth Circuit Court of Appealsissues an Order dismissing the appeal
in 2:15-cv-1274 for failure tofile the opening brief on appeal. ECF No. 18.

12/5/16 Magistrate Judge &le issues an Ordertivdrawing IFP status and
directing that plaintiff must fila Second Amended Complaint witt80 days of the date of the
Order. ECF No. 11.

5/17/17 Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issues a memorandum ordering the
decision of the DistrictCourt in 2:15-cv-1274 isaffirmed. ECF No. 197

6/8/17 Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issues a formal mandate regarding
Appeal pursuant to Federal Ruleof Appellate Procedure 41(a).

12/29/16 Plaintiff moves for a 30 day extemsof time to file a Second Amended
Complaint ECF No. 12, which motiongsanted on 12/29/16. ECF No. 13.

2/1/17 SecondAmendedComplaintof 148 pages filed. ECF No. 14.

3/21/17 Motion to Dismiss by defendarBowles, Dingman, District, Puckett,
Slote, by attorney Salazar raises failure toyahe Order of 6/26/16 directing amendment not
exceed 25 pages, and failure tatsta claim insofar as claimsearot tied to facts sufficient to
demonstrate any permissible actioraimy rational way. ECF No. 28.

Motion to Dismiss by Hornbrook Comumity Bible Church, Inc. in which

defendant’s attorney Salazar mirrgr®@unds found in ECF No. 28. ECF 32.

* Plaintiff fails to note that #hDavis court identified the pleawj under to review to be 20 pag

long and distinguished it from & @ircuit case that dismissedcomplaint containing 240 page$

on the same grounds used to dismiss plaintfiplaint here, finding it exceptional comparec
the complaint it was addressing. 269 F.3d at 821.

> The undersigned is confused why, having dismissed the appeal for failure to file an oper
brief and having the dismissal stand as the manofathe court, thélinth Circuit, without
reopening the appeal, issued a sutista decision on the merits of the district court’s dismiss

7
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Motionsto Dismissin ECFNos.28 and 36 joined by defendant Ernest
Goff, pro se. ECF No. 34.
3/22/17 PlaintifrequestEntry of Default against Btrict, Martin Puckett and
Slote. ECF No. 38.
3/24/17 Request for Entry of DefgtECF No. 38, declined. ECF No. 39.
3/27/17 Plaintifrequess Entry of Default against Hornbrook Community Bible
Church, Inc. ECF No. 44.

3/29/17 Under the caption for Harrell[Hornbrook Communityservices District,

et al., 2:14-1595 KJM GGH, District Judge Muelleteza an order that assigns this case to

herself and to the undersigned, aismisses the Harrell case widave to amend in 25 pages

less. ECF No. 45.
3/29/17 Motion to Dismiss by attornegfendants Kirsher, Winston & Boston,
L.C. and Robert Winston filebly attorney Sommer. ECF No. 46.
3/30/17 Plaintiff moves for a 60 day extemsof time to file an opposition to the
Motions to Dismiss and seeks permisdionearly discovery. ECF No. 48.
3/31/17 Plaintiff request for Entry of Ezult against Lee Buckley, Robert Winstd
and Kirsher, Winston & Boston, LLC. ECF. 52.
Hearing on Motion to Dismiss scheduled 5/18/17 at 10:00 a.m. reset f
9:00 a.m. ECF N. 49.
4/3/17 Request for Entry of Defaalgainst Hornbrook Comamity Bible Church,
Inc., ECF No. 44, declined. EC No. 51.
Request for Entry of Default ampst Kirshner, Winston & Boston, LLC
and Robert Winston, ECF declined. ECF No. 54.
4/6/17 Letter from plaintiff to Clerkf the Court questioning whether a hearing
was ever noticed for 5/18/17, afasing no notice. ECF No. 56.
Plaintiff files Opposition to Harbrook Community Services District’s
Motion to Dismiss. ECF No. 57.
1
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a/7/17 MagistrateJudgeHollows’ Order denies extsion of time to respond to
Motion to Dismiss for mootness as no operatgmplaint exists, and denies request for early

discovery. ECF No. 55.

Plaintiff Objectsto JudgeMueller's Order of March 29, 2017 on grounds i

is factually incorrect, opines that assignmerth®undersigned Magistraledge is prejudicial tc

him in light of Orders entered the related Harrell case and agtkat her Order be withdrawn.

ECF No. 59.

4/10/17 Basic Laboratory, Inc. files ardaer in the Motion to Dismiss filed by
District, Puckett, Slote, Bowlesid Dingman, ECF No. 28. ECF No. 58.

4/12/17 Plaintiff requests 60 day extemsof time to Oppose Kirsher, Winston &
Boston, LC and Robert Winston Mon to Dismiss. ECF No. 60.

Plaintiff requests reconsideratioh Order entered on 4/7/17 on the grot
that Judge Mueller’s Order in ECF No. 45, having been entered undeaited caption, did not
bind him, and that Magistrate Claire’s impogitiof a page limitation no longer applied. ECF.
61.

4/25/17 Motion to Dismiss found in EQNo. 33 is vacated from Magistrate
Claire’s 4/26/17 calendar and if parties seekeschedule they shalutontact Judge Hollows’

Courtroom Deputy in light of the assignmehtange ordered by Judge Mueller on 3/29/17.

5/2/117 Magistrate Judge issues adérto Show Cause why plaintiff should not

be sanctioned for failing to follow the Distridgtidge’s Order of March 29 2017, ECF No. 45, t
file a Third Amended Complaint not& than April 28, 2017. ECF No. 63.

5/19/17 District Judge Mueller denigkintiff’'s Motion to Reconsider, ECF No.
61, and clarifies that Judge Glis 25 page-limit on any amended complaint was preserved
ECF Nos. 10 and 11. ECF No. 74.

Plaintiff responds to the Order to Show Cause, repegtsnents found in

ECF No. 74, and clearly states paige 6, lines 7 through page 7¢lib, that he refuses to amen
his Second Amended Complaint and chooses instesiéind on that pleading. ECF No. 65.
i
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5/25/17 Plaintiff files Objections tad seeks Reconsideration of the Order four
in ECF No. 74. Here, he discloses his behett once he withdrew from IFP status, the
magistrate judge was no longer either requireenitied to require the brevity which she had
ordered earlier in the case and thla¢ indicated her belief this sv&rue in her withdrawal order
which gave him more time to amend and poirgetithat such was appropriate since he was 11
longer proceedingdP. EC No. 66.

6/2/17 JudgeMueller overules plaintiff's objections and warns that future
unauthorized filings may result in samets, including dismissal. ECF No. 67.

DISCUSSON

This duplicative case has been on the coduditket for a year and three months at this
point, and it is no closer to resthn today than it was on the ddyas filed. The docket show
68 entries which reflect significantly more actyrequiring the attention of the court and the
parties than is normally seenthis point in a litigation. Todayhere is no litigable complaint o
file. Defendants have filed multiple Motions to Diss) surely at no small expense. Plaintiff |
objected to every action taken by the court, nttendow de minimus, requiring multiple order
to be written only to draw another round of Haane circular movement of paperwork. The tin
has come to address a means ofging this matter to a conclusion.

The court has considered three posgioiential analytic madels in addressing
this case:

(2) Res judicata implications of the first filed amplaint with regard to the present
one;

(2) Applicability of Federal Rulesf Civil Procedure 41(b) based on the
contumaciousness of plaintiff, and his failureatzept the court’s Orders regarding applicatio

Rule 8 standards; and

3) Applicability of Rule 12(b)(6) and how ibald or should be applied in this case|.

A. Res Judicata

Because of the fact that many of the claims and a majority of the defendants sued for anc

by plaintiff in both this case and 2:15-cv-0123M GGH are one and the same, the court mu
10
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consider whether entry of the first matter upamdssal with prejudice, and exhaustion of
plaintiff's appeal rights, dictas that this matter should desmissed under the doctrineres
judicata. The Supreme Court has adoptieel view that application oksjudicata serves the
“public policy [that] dictate[s] that there be an end of litigation; that those who have contes
issue shall be bound by the result of the contest; that matters once tdeshall be considered

forever settled as betweeretparties.”_Federated Depa#dnt Stores, Inc. v., Moitjel52 U.S.

394, (1981 gucting Baldwin v. Traveling Men’s Assn., 283.S. 522, 525 (1981). And even in

cases where the party that lost in the trial coureédeib appeal, or as in this case failed to purs
an appeal once filed, so long as the party mazdcallated choice to act @slid, even a suspect
trial ruling will be upheld under th&octrine in service to the public policy. Id. at 401. The N
Circuit has concurred in this pdsophy of rigid enforcement dlhe doctrine. In Main v. HEW,

Health Care Financing Agency 769 F.2d 590, 584GB. 1985) the court held that a party wh(

does not appeal, or as in this case failgeidect his appeal, has “accepted the court’s final
rejection of is claims in one instance katut appealing, [and] he can claim no fairness
requirement that he be allowed to continue tgditie the same claims in a different courtroom
Neither should a trial court, such asstbne, shrink from enforcement of the policy
because of the waiver, either express or by stleoicthe defense. Rather it may, and perhap

should, in an appropriate case raise the barsaowh motion._Plaut v. Spendthrift Farm, Inc.,

514 U.S. 211, 232 (1998jting Commodity Futures Trading Comm’n v. Schor, 478 U.S. 833.

851 (1986)._See also Bragg v. ElBrd of Education, 570 F.3d 775, 771 (Gir. 2009);

Simmons v. Chatham Nursing Home, 93 F.Supp.2d 1265, 1267 (S.D.Ga. 2000).

Further, the doctrine applies in those casatdhe dismissed before the merits of the

action are reached such as is the case ha In re Schimmels, 127 F3d. 874, 884 (@r. 1997),

the Ninth Circuit clearly held that in themtext of a similar dismissal under Rule 415
judiciata applied insofar as “[a]n invohtary dismissal generally acts as a judgment on the n
for purposes ofes judicata regardless of whether the dismissal result frggnoaedural error or
from the court’s considered examination of therdléis substantive claim§ (Emphasis added

Even if the dismissal under 41(b) was said t6viaéhout leave to amendfather than under the
11
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more decisive sounding term “wighrejudice,” the Circuit has hettlat the dismissal is presume
to be with prejudice unless othase stated for purposes of applyires judicata. Stewart v.
U.S. Bancorp, 297 F.3d 953 956“(9ir. 2002). This court theref determines that if the
doctrine ofresjudicata is applicable in this case it must &gplied to dismiss the matter, at lea
with respect to the defendamtsthe previous case whoeadefendants in this case.
Resjudicata dictates dismissal of claims previously litigated to a dismissal on the me

as well aglaims that could have been brought in the original complaint. _See Whole Woman'’s

Health v. Hellerstedt, U.S. __ ,136 S.Ct. 2292, 2303 (2ixiit Whole Womens Health v.

Cole 790 F.3d 453r curiam) modified 790 F.3d 598, {5Cir. 2015). The elements necessa
to establisiresjudicata are “(1) an identity of claims J& final judgment on the merits, and (3
privity between the parties.” Hells Canyon Rrestion Council v. U.S. Forest Service, 403 F
683, 686 (& Cir. 2006). Therefore, in order to deténe which defendants would be protecte
by the application of the doctrine and whichuhdn’t due to an absee of the “privity”
requirement of the doctrine wouldquire that the new gintiffs who were not sued in the first
complaint be shown to have been jeopardized bydlrying of the claims of the first complain
against them thus entitling themgootection through thapplication ofesjudicata.

“Privity” covers several relatnships. Of greatest applicatyilhere is the privity that
“has been found where there is a “substanteniifly” between the party and nonparty.” In re
Schimmels, 127 F.3d 874, 881"(@ir. 1997). The test is whethalt of the parties to the instan

parties were either parties, or were intenbg@ll concerned to be constrained by the ultimate

2d

rits,

ry

3d
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judgment in the action. Nevada v. U.S., 46311, 120 (1983). See also U.S. v. ITT Rayonier,

Inc., 627 F.2d 995, 1001{@Cir. 1980)(bar as to prosecutiofsuccessive partners), id. at1003

(or bearing a relationship “of subatel identity” to earlier partygiting Chicago, R.l. & P. R.

Co. v. Schendel, 270 U.S. 611 621 (1980). Establgstprivity” in this cag would, therefore,
engage the court in a prolonged analysis ofrti&vidual defendants suex this case and those
sued in the original case to determine the ele@f relationship each bears to the earlier name
defendants who are not nadn@ the 2015 complaint.

I
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Assessing the applicability of this doctrineder the remainder tiie standard in the
present case is somewhat difficult given thebesity and organization of the plaintiff's
complaints in the two cases. Nonetheless,dtaar that there is significant overlap in the

substance of the two Complaints disclosed in the captions, each of which identifies the ov

claims being brought. In the original Complaimé actions are characterized as “Action at Law

for Civil Rights Violations; Vioations of Federal Safe drimg Water Act and Clean Water Act;

Pendent State Claims,” and “Geest[s] for Preliminary and Peament Injunctions; Declaratory
Relief.” 2:15-cv-01274-MCE-AC. In the new€omplaint the actions are characterized
substantially identica}i, except the second action adds antleor relief pursuant to the Fair
Labor Standards Act in addition toose listed above. 2:16-cv-965-KIM-GGH.

Thus, on its face, with the caveats discussddw, the two complaints share an identity

of claims, and again, claims which could haverbbrought in the originalase but weren't are

barred byresjudicata as well. However, the present coniplalates many of its claims, but not

all, from December 4, 2015, which post-dates tiimegfof the first action by several monthRes
judicata could not apply to “new” claims no matter heunilar to the old claims, i.e, these clai
could not have been broughtthre earlier action. Accordinglyes judicata will only apply to
those claims which were or could have beemught as of the filing date of the first action—Ju
15, 2015.

Further, although there is cleadn overlap of some parsi¢o the two amons, not all
defendants that appear in the 2015 complamnamed in the 2016 complaint. Based on the
statements of plaintiff in his objections tastlcourt’s prior orders, the Board membership
changed between the first action and the presentamigethe court can also see that he has ac
lawyers who have taken on responsibilities with rdda various defendants that were not sue
in the first case and apparently eliminal@dyers who representedw abandoned defendants

The defendants common to both actionstleeHornbrook Communit$ervices District,

brall

ms

ded
d

Hanson, Winston, Bowles, Dingma@off, Hornbrook Community Bible Church, Crittenden, and

the law firm Murphy, Pearson,et Because the matter i judicata is being raised sua spontg

by the court, and due to the lack of facts on mcthe undersigned will not attempt to determi
13
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if the uncommon defendantstime second action could bringes judicata argument based on

privity of parties. Accordinglyresjudicata is limited to the defendant®mmon to both actions
In this case, especially when companotgintiff Gifford’s pleadings, with those of

another “disgruntled ex-employee of the distrivéter T. Harrell, see docket_in Harrell v.

Hornbrook Community Services District, 2:18&595 KIM GGH, still pending, one is left with

a deep conviction that these twaipltiffs are working together westroy this District although to
what end can only be speculated. Perhapshbpg to be the saviors who pick up the pieces
after the dust of their twin litigeins clears, and then they camthe District as they believe it

should be run. Comparing both thigtics and the contenof the two sets of complaints shows a

remarkable, almost carbon copy, likeness betweeclthms made by these plaintiffs, the format

174

they use, and the arguments they make. Aath of them are equally committed to ignore the

Rules laid out by this court and Magistrate Jultison Claire who was responsible for rulings

U

in this case before it was relatiedthe undersigned to the pointinsisting that these Rules are
not being properly interpreted. In any eveng, fiseling of collusion that is raised by these
similarities cannobe ignored.

Accordingly, to the extent that plaintiffidaims in his second action pre-date June 15,
2015, and are applicable to the partisted as common to both actionss judicata bars
plaintiff's second action.
B. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(b)

Analyzing the complaint purely under Rule B}l (there are more than sufficient grounds
to dismiss the Second Amended Complaint witjyatice under the Rule. The court previously
ordered plaintiff to reduce his complaint to 2%es, and plaintiff has refused to do so. The

discussion starts, however, with an iteration efbasons why plaintiff was ordered to limit hi

U7

complaint to 25 pages.

In McHenry v. Renne, 84 F.3d 1172"(@ir. 1996) the Circuit Court affirmed a dismissgl

under Federal Rules 8, 12 and 41 after plaihtil been given thrempportunities to draft a

complaint that comported to the foregoing Rulethay had been explained in prior court ordgrs

dismissing with leave to amend. 84 F.3d at 1176. The issue there was the massive inclus
14
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irrelevant factual information in a complaintittwas prolix and confusing but not nearly as
egregiously so as the one being analyzed hEhe. original complaint in McHenry was thirty-

five pages long but was never served. Insieads preplaced by an Amended Complaint tha

was thirty-seven pages long and was “mostly dareded narrative of the details of the various

activities of plaintiff McHenry,” and failed to sliinguish between defendants who played role
each of his two claims for relief and includedhspiracy allegations involving numerous playe
in Mr. McHenry’'s drama._Id. at 1174. The traaurt dismissed this complaint with instruction
regarding the content of asgcond amended complaint. 1d. at 1175. The second amendeg
complaint “contained identically argumentativegrolix allegations which now required fifty-
three pages to complete and “mixed allegationglefvant facts, irrelevant facts, political
argument, and legal argument in a confusing wag."at 1175. The triatourt gave plaintiff one
more chance to formulate a satisfactory complduis time suggesting he would be “well advis
to edit or eliminate [the] twentgix page introduction and focus on linking . . . factual allegati
to actual legal claims. The purpose of the cowstesy is not after all, to provide a forum for

storytelling or political gripng, but to resolve legal disputedd. at 1176. Mr. McHenry,

—

S in
Is

S

ed

ons

however, eschewed the courtdvace and filed a third amended complaint which “still read][] like

a magazine story instead of a traditional compfaand the pleading nowrgttched to fifty-three
pages._Id. After receiving awais from a magistrate judge theurt finally dismissed this last
effort without leave to amend undeule 41(b) for plaintiff's violation of its last order. Id. at
1177.

Many courts have followed the reasoning ofHdary to rid the system of complaints i
the instant oné. In Polk v. Beard, 2014 WL 4765611.(CCal. June 20, 2014), the Central
District of California was facedith a situation similar to thene here in that each time a new
pleading was filed it exceeded theedpefore it , id. at *1-3, with lile or no attention paid to the

orders of the court, id. at *4nd, after applying the standard eat in Ferdick v. Bonzelet, 963

® See headnote 8 to the McHenry case wtedlects that 286 casésve cited the opinion

regarding the obligation of the court to consider riights of litigants awaiting their turn to have

their matters heard in a situatisuch as the one addressed here.
15
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F.2d 1258-1250-1261 {Cir. 1992), which will be discussed below, dismissed the complaint

with prejudice, noting thajudges are not like pigs hunting fowuftfles buried in briefs.”_Id. at

*5, quoting U.S v. Dunkel, 927 F.2d 955, 956"(Tir. 1991)per curiam).” In Gottschalk v. City

and County of San Francisco, 964 F.Supp. 2d 1840.Cal. 2013), theaurt dealt with a

complaint that violated Rule 8 insofar asansisted of incomprehensible rambling, id. at 115

largely conclusionary allegatioasd generalized political grievess or conspiracy. Id. at 1155.

While the undersigned acknowledgihat sheer length of a colapt standing alone may not
warrant the dismissal of a complaint under McHeand the Ninth Circuiso held in Hearns v.

San Bernardino Police Dept., 530 F.3d 1124, 11810 2008), where the complaint was

characterized as “intelligibleral “logically organized,” albeibverly detailed, id, it has also
acknowledged that it has notlhend knows “of no authorityupporting the proposition—that &

pleading may be of unlimited length and opacitZarfasso, U.S. ex rel. v. General Dynamics

Systems, Inc., 637 F.3d 1047, 1058 @r. 2011)(distinguishing Hearns)n so acting, the Cour

pointed to the fact that the amded complaint in Carfasso ren733 pages, nine times longer

than the 81 page complaint_in Hearns, thus pingithe district court with “ample discretion” t

deny further amendment. Id. at 1059.

Accordingly, there was more than suffidigustification for ordering the limitation of

+=

C4

—

pages as directed by the court a$ding this matter. Nevertheless, the justification of the prior

limitation order is not the end tiie analysis. Several factorsead to be considered before
dismissal of a case for failure to obey couders. An application of the Ferdick, supra,
standards easily supports the dismisédhis Complaint. 963 F.2d at 1261.

1. The Public’s Interest in Expétious Resolution of Litigation

This interest would not be compromisedhi&é court exercised its inherent power to
dismiss this case that has been throughitgrations spanning a year and continues to
incorporate over 100 paragraphgoécatory facts into each tife 27 Counts of the first action

and the 31 Counts of the second. How the canuditthe parties are structure discovery

’” The Ninth Circuit very recently affirmetie dismissal in an unpublished decision found at
2017 WL 2839502 (8 Cir. July 3, 2017).

16
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proceedings that will clarify the application of fatb law in a reasonable way, especially in li
of plaintiff's adamant refusal even to attempt to truncate the segmandless pleading now on
file, is an unreasonable requirement for the ungeesl, even with its 28 years of experience d
the bench, unreasonable to any judge and pralsiymanreasonable to any opposing attorney.
This element, therefore, supports the caudtermination to dismiss the Second Amended
Complaint with prejudice under Rule 41(b).

2. The Court’'s Need to Manage its Docket

The docket sheet in this case as prod@€efilings by the parties and the court in the
fourteen months it has been pending, andllgrsthe pleading phasand 68 docket entries
overall. None of the various briefs and arguta¢hat have ensued have been successful in
moving the case even to the point whéris at issue and can begin® prepared for trial. Man
other litigants compete for the court’s attentiomider to reach “the just, speedy and inexpen
determination of every action and proceeding” thaderal Rule of Civil Procedure 1 makes cl
is the point of the federal sgsh. Plaintiff's goal, on the other hand, seems exactly the oppo
of that purpose insofar as he has moved throughess# actions thatppear designed to make
it ever more impossible to reach that gbathis element favors the court’s inclination to dism
with prejudice.

3. The Risk of Prejudice to the Defendants

There is no risk of prejudice to defendariisidd this case be dismissed with prejudice,.

As the procedural history of tliase demonstrates, they havefledeboth iterations of this case

multiple times getting nothing for their efforts but another expenditure of resources. This €

favors the court’s incliation to recommend dismissal withdeave to amend, and with prejudice.

4. The Public Policy Favoring Disptien of Cases o heir Merits

Obviously, the action the court contemplatesildarrest this case short of resolution g
the merits, but should not weigh heavily enougteay the application of that action. The

chances of this case reaching dispositiomy estimable amount of time is, given its posture

8 Exemplary of this tactic is the fact that eattorney who appears in these matters ultimatel
ends up with being named as a defendasubjected to motions to disqualify.

17
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now and the obvious stubbornness and contumabehsvior of the plaintiff, are abundantly

clear, i.e., there is no realistic cle@nof reaching the true meritstbis lawsuit whatever they arg.

U

5. The Availability of Less Drastic Alternatives

The less drastic alternative available her® idismiss the complaint without prejudice
and allow plaintiff to amend one more time. HoweWethis were required it is obvious at this

point that the amended complaint would not béeRBucompliant nor comply with the court ord

(1)
—

limiting the complaint to 25 pages. MoreoveriRtiff has made clear in his objections to
various of the court’s rulings @t he would not amend evergiizen the opportunity, for he has
chosen to stand on the present complaint on thenglrthat the court does not correctly interpret
Rule 8, is prejudiced againato se plaintiffs, and is generallfpcused on getting rid of such
plaintiffs at every opportunityThus, the normal less drastic altatime is not avdable here, nor
is it appropriate at this juncture in any event.

Although this court believes that Rule 41(bj)hie best basis for dismissing this Complaint
without leave to amend and wipinejudice as it not only gets tkhase to the appellate court to
resolve finally, but it also makes clearthmse who write complaints that thewst follow the

Rules to proceed with litigation and they mabey court orders. On the other hand, the Ninth

Circuit has made a recent ruling that suggests the matter should be resolved pursuant to Rule

12(b)(6).
C. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6)

As did Mr. Harrell earliersee Case 2:14-cv-01595 KIJM @(EDocket entry ECF No. 148
at 9:22-11:7, plaintiff here Isaelected to “stand on his comipla” ECF No. 66:18-23. In so
doing he cites Edwards v. Marin Park, Inc., 356 F.3d 108&{@ 2004).

The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals addredgbe issue of whether a complainant whose

Complaint was dismissed withoutgpudice could nontheless app#a Order in Lopez v. City of

Needles, Cal., 95 F.3d 20"(@ir. 1996). In Lopez the plaiffts complaint had been dismissed

with leave to amend and plaintiff filed an appegthe decision. 95 F.3d at 22. The court held
that whereas “[o]rdinarily aarder dismissing a complaint bt dismissing the action is not

appealable under section 1291 the [appellant] isatptired to amend in order to preserve his
18
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right to appeal” and could rendihe Order immediately appealalif she “files in writing a
notice of intent not to file an amended compidind. Whereas Lopez did not give such a
written notice leading to dismissafl her appeal for lack of jusdiction, plaintiff here has given
such notice in writing.

In WMX Technologies, Inc. v. Miller, 104 F.3d 1133"(@ir. 1997)(en banc), the court

again made clear that a plafhtvho had his complaint dismissedth leave to amend could not
immediately appeal that decision since it was m@lfibut if “a plaintiff files in writing a notice
of intent not to file an amended complaint, filing of such a notice givethe district court an
opportunity to reconsider, if appropriate, but miongortantly, to entean order dismissing the
action, [an order] that is clegrbppealable.” 104 F.3d at 1185oting Lopez. The case cited b
plaintiff, Edwardssupra, iterated this holding ating that a plaintiff “ray obtain an appealable
final judgment by ‘fil[ing] in writing a notice of intemot to file an amended complaint.” 356
F.3d at 1064.

Thus, when a plaintiff clearly communicatas choice to stand on his complaint he hal
not disobeyed the court’'s Order in such a watpasvite a Rule 41(b) dismissal, but he has
transformed the court’s threat of dismissal fooldedience of its ordertio a “final, appealable
judgment.” Id. at 1064. In so holding the counteabthat there is more than a formal differen
between a dismissal under Rule 41(b) and omeuRule 12(b)(6) insofar as the former is
deemed a sanction for disobedience while ttterldcarries no such stigma,” but permits
appellate review directly upondhguestion of whether the plaffihas stated a claim upon whic
relief can be granted. Id. at 1065.

There is some question in the undersigned’s mind whether Edwiatidjt the situation
here. In that case cited for the proposition ahpting appeal in the pleading stage, the plain
had received a ruling on the merits of the claaitieit some of the claims had been dismissed
failure to allege facts with specificity, but besawof the perceived error of law on the merits,
plaintiff was desirous of recemy a final ruling on the legal issues from the court of appeal.
Here, plaintiff contests not disgsal of his claims on the merits vather the Magistrate Judge

and the District Judge’s conglions that the Second Amendédmplaint was a hopeless mish-
19
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mash of verbose narrative and prolix claims Wwhiere entwined with #hnarrative, including
some of the many footnotes, amdlering that he limit his pleling to a succinct 25 pages — a
procedural ruling and not a ruling time legal merits of the claims. It is difficult to conceive that
such becomes a determination that specific cl#éecied a legal basis -- a point at which this
court has been unable to arrivEhe point of the previous dismigseith leave to amend was that
the prolixity denied defendants a fair oppmity to identify andespond to the claims.
But perhaps the rule conundrum is now ainitsion without a differace. If plaintiff

receives a Rule 41 final dismissal, it is appealablee receives a Rule 12 (b) dismissal, it is

appealable. Although theastdards for review of the differedismissals differ, the facts and

—

rulings germane to the appeal do not change sitmptause a different rule number is applied|to
decide them in this court.
CONCLUSION

But for the plaintiff's invocation of Edwasd et al., this court has no doubt that the
contumacious behavior of plaifitivould meet all the criterifor a Rule 41(b) dismissal.
Edwards, however, may require a dismissal puttsieaRule 12(b)(6) which will allow the Ninth
Circuit to review the entirety dhe record and determine whetipéintiff may proceed with this
litigation. The best way to resolWeis case is, therefory issue alternate lings with respect to
a Rule 41(b) and Rule 12(b)(6) dismissal.

In light of the foregoing, IT ISSEREBY FOUND AND RECOMMENDED that:

1. The Second Amended Complaint be dismisseresjudicata grounds to the
extent that the claims therepre-date June 15, 2015, and steged against the defendants
common to both actions identified previously;

2. Plaintiff's Second Amended complaint Bsmissed with prejudice pursuant to
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 4)lor, in the alternative, that:

3. Plaintiff's Second Amended complaint Bsmissed with prejudice pursuant to
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6).

4. The Clerk of the Court should close this file.

I
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These Findings and Recommendation are #tdufto the United States District Judge

assigned to the case, pursuarthi provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 636(h))(IWithin thirty days after

being served with thesFindings and Recommendations, theigs may file written objections

with the court. Such a document should be captid'Objections to Magisdte Judge’s Findings

and Recommendations.” The parties are advisedalbate to file objections within the specifi¢

time may waive the right to applethe District Court’'s orderMartinez v. Yist, 951 F.2d 1153

(9" Cir.1991).
Dated: August 17, 2017

/s/ Gregory G. Hollows
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE
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